IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

PEDRO LUIS MEDINA,

Appellant,

vs.

CASE NO. 63-680

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

SID J. WHITE
DEG 6 1983
CLEPK, SUPREME COURT,
By Chief Deputy Glerk

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

WARREN H. EDWARDS, ESQUIRE Suite 101, Bradshaw Bldg. 65 N. Orange Avenue Orlando, Florida 32801 (305) 425-7676

AND

RONALD R. FINDELL, ESQUIRE Suite 101, Bradshaw Bldg. 65 N. Orange Avenue Orlando, Florida 32801 (305) 425-7676

Attorneys for Appellant

13-160ch

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Appellant, PEDRO LUIS MEDINA, was the Defendant in the lower court. The Appellee, STATE OF FLORIDA, was the Plaintiff in the lower court. The parties will be referred to as the Defendant and the State for the purposes of this brief.

The symbol "TR" followed by an accompanying page number as well as line number (where appropriate) will denote the transcript of the record of appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

During the night hours of April 3-4, 1982, Dorothy James, who resided at 462 Oak Ridge Road, Apartment 211, Orlando, Florida, was stabbed to death in the bedroom of her apartment by an unknown individual or individuals. Her 1973 Cadillac was found missing from the apartment complex.

On April 8, 1982, Trooper R.A. Wilson, a member of the Florida Highway Patrol, observed a 1973 Cadillac parked in a rest area on I-10 near Lake City, Florida. He noticed that the car's engine was running and that the driver of the automobile appeared to be asleep. Upon closer inspection, he observed what appeared to be a gas leak from the rear of the vehicle. Prior to approaching the vehicle to check on the condition of the driver, Trooper Wilson radioed the tag number of the vehicle to his dispatcher. Before he could leave the vehicle his dispatcher radioed him back, stating that the car was wanted for possibly having been involved in a homicide in Orange County.

Based on this information, Trooper Wilson radioed for his back-up, Trooper W.H. Hull. Upon his arrival, both troopers approached the automobile with weapons drawn. They awoke the driver, later identified as PEDRO LUIS MEDINA, and arrested him for possession of a stolen vehicle. During the arrest, the Defendant allegedly struggled with the officers and was later charged with battery upon a law enforcement officer.

Following his arrest, the Cadillac was searched. The troopers found two Florida tags in the trunk of the vehicle. A silver colored, wood-handled knife with a four inch blade was discovered beneath a hubcap lying on the rear floor board of the car. Additionally, a key ring with a large initial "D" was found in the ignition.

Following his arrest, the Defendant was transported to the Columbia County Jail, and the information concerning his arrest and the evidence seized was radioed back to the Orange County Sheriff's Office. On April 9, 1982, Detective Daniel Nazarchuck, an investigator with the Orange County Sheriff's Office, traveled to

Lake City to interview the Defendant concerning his possession of the victim's car, and his possible involvement in her murder. Upon arrival, Detective Nazarchuck read the Defendant his rights off a standard Miranda card and then obtained both oral and taped interviews from the Defendant.

Based on the interviews with the Defendant, along with the evidence obtained from the car by the Florida Highway patrol, and other witness statements, Detective Nazarchuck arrested the Defendant for first degree murder (pages 1510-1512). The Defendant was then transported back to Orange County in a transport bus. The evidence gathered from the murder scene, the Cadillac, and the Defendant were turned over to the Sanford Crime Lab for analysis, except for the fingerprints, which were sent to Amanda Taylor, a latents print examiner for the Orange County Sheriff's Office, for comparison.

During the transport of the Defendant from Lake City to Orange County, R.D. Booth and D.L. Riley, Orange County Sheriff transportation officers, heard a thump from the rear of the locked bus where the Defendant had been seated. Officer Booth looked back and saw the Defendant not in the bus but on the pavement outside the bus (in chains and handcuffs). They retrieved the Defendant and placed him back into the transportation bus, where he was taken to the Orange County Jail without further incident.

On May 6, 1982, a preliminary hearing was held before the Honorable Gary Formet, Sr., acting Circuit Judge. Judge Formet heard the evidence and found that there was probable cause to hold the Defendant on the charges of auto theft and first degree murder (page 1515). On June 14, 1982, the Defendant was indicted for first degree murder (page 1518) and was served with an arrest warrant on the charge (page 1520).

On June 16, 1982, the Defendant was arraigned on the charge of first degree murder, and was appointed the Public Defender (page 1523). Trial was set for October 5, 1982, at 9:00 A.M. (page 1524). On July 14, 1982, the trial was reset

to August 31, 1982, at 9:00 A.M. (page 1527).

On July 23, 1982, the Public Defender filed various Motions on behalf of the Defendant including a Motion in Liminie (requesting the Court to issue an Order prohibiting the prosecutor from questioning any prospective jurors regarding their opinions on the death penalty), a Motion to Preclude Challenges for Cause (against prospective jurors who might be opposed to the death penalty), a Motion to Declare Florida Statute 921.141 Unconstitutional, a Motion for a Evidentiary Hearing (regarding death by electrocution as constituting cruel and unusual punishment) and to Declare Florida Statute 922.10 Unconstitutional, a Motion for Individual Voir Dire and Sequestration of the Jurors During Voir Dire, a Motion for Presentence Investigation, A Motion to Dismiss the Indictment or to Declare that Death (would not be a possible penalty in the case), and a Motion for Voir Dire of the Grand Jurors (pages 1547-1569). A hearing was set for the Motions, and on August 17, 1982, the Court entered its Order denying all the Motions except for the Motion for Individual Voir Dire and Sequestration of the Jury, which it took under On August 17, 1982, the Public Defender moved to advisement (page 1591). Withdraw as the Defendant's appointed counsel based on the fact that they had once represented one of the State's witnesses, Reinaldo Dorta (page 1588). August 18, 1982, the State filed a Motion to Consolidate the auto theft charge with the first degree murder charge (page 1589). The Court granted the State's Motion to Consolidate on August 23, 1982 (page 1592).

On August 26, 1982, the Court granted the Public Defender's Motion to Withdraw, and appointed Anna Tangel Rodriquez and the undersigned to represent the Defendant (page 1594). On August 31, 1982, trial was set to begin. At that time, the newly appointed counsel announced that the Defendant was not yet ready to proceed to trial since the new counsel had only been appointed to represent the Defendant some four days earlier. Without formally moving for a continuance, and without waiving the Defendant's right to a speedy trial, counsel for the Defendant

requested an additional sixty to ninety days to prepare for trial. The Court ordered that the case be continued, stating that the delay was attributable to the conflict of interest on the part of the Public Defender only discovered a few weeks prior to trial. Based upon this "exigent circumstance", trial was continued for ninety days (page 1600).

On October 29, 1982, counsel for the Defendant filed a Motion for Discharge, stating that the Defendant had been taken into custody on April 8, 1982, and since the Defendant had never waived his right to a speedy trial, the 180 day period had run, entitling the Defendant to discharge (page 1662). A hearing was held on the Motion for Discharge on November 5, 1982, and the Motion for Discharge was denied (page 1678). Following the hearing, the Court reset the trial to March 15, 1983, based upon the Defendant's Motion for Continuance (page 1679).

On February 9, 1983, counsel for the Defendant filed a Request for Selection of Seating of the Defendant. On March 4, 1983, the State filed a Notice of Intention to Use Similar Fact Evidence (referring to the alleged escape attempt by the Defendant from the transportation bus).

On March 9, 1983, counsel for the Defendant filed various Motions on the Defendant's behalf, including a Supplemental Motion in Liminie (requesting the Court to enter an Order prohibiting any questioning of the prospective trial jurors regarding their attitudes towards the death penalty), a Request for List of Prospective Jurors, a Motion for Discharge of Records of Prior Convictions (of certain State witnesses), a Motion for Additional Psychiatric Examination of the Defendant, a Request for Sequestration of the Jury During Trial, a Motion to Vacate the Death Penalty, a Motion to Declare Florida Statute 922.10 Unconstitutional, and a Motion to Suppress the Evidence and Statements (obtained from the Defendant following his arrest by the Florida Highway Patrol on April 8, 1982). (pages 1794-1807).

On March 10, 1983, counsel for the Defendant filed a Motion in Liminie

(requesting that the State be refrained from making any references to the alleged battery on a law enforcement office which arose from the arrest of the Defendant by the Florida Highway Patrol on April 8, 1982), along with a Motion to Suppress the statements obtained from the Defendant by Detective Nazarchuck (pages 1809-1811).

On March 15, 1983, the day of trial, counsel for the Defendant filed a Motion to Challenge the Jury Panel and to Discharge the Panel. The Defendant additionally filed a Motion to Sever the auto theft charge from the first degree murder charge (pages 1818-1821). All these Motions were denied by the trial Court on March 11, 1983, except for the Request for List of Prospective Jurors, the Motion for Disclosure of Records of Prior Convictions, and the Motions to Suppress (pages 1836-1840).

Prior to the selection of the jury, counsel for the Defendant renewed his request to sever the charges. The Court denied the motion, stating that it had ruled on the matter previously when it consolidated the charges for trial (pages 5-6). During the voir dire, counsel for the Defendant moved for a mistrial due to the fact that the Defendant had been handcuffed while still within the view of the jury. The court denied this motion (pages 67-69).

Following selection of the jury, the Court denied the Defendant's Motion Challenging the Jury Panel, stating that no further argument or evidence had been offered in support of the Motion (pages 116-117). The State then proceeded with its opening statement. During that statement, the prosecutor alluded to the jury that he would be presenting evidence of the Defendant's alleged escape attempt from the transportation bus. The Defendant objected, but was overruled (page 135, lines 1-7). The State then presented its first four witnesses: Arnita James, Ernest Arnold, Ruby Pate, and Barbara Andrews. The Court then recessed the jury for the evening.

Following the excusal of the jury, the Court heard the Defendant's Motion to

Suppress the statements obtained from the Defendant by Detective Nazarchuck. Both the detective and the Defendant proffered their testimony on the Motion (pages 195-220). Following their testimony, the Court heard argument and then reserved ruling (pages 222-226). The Court then adjourned all proceedings until the following morning.

The next morning, prior to trial, Orange County corrections officers' Mead and Whitted stated that the Defendant had not been brought to the courtroom yet because he had been acting in a violent and hostile manner in his holding cell (pages 227-232). Based on this apprisal, the Court ruled that the Defendant would remain shackled and handcuffed for the remainder of the trial (pages 232-233). Counsel for the Defendant objected to the Defendant remaining chained during trial in full view of the jury, but was overruled (pages 235-247). The jury was then seated and the State presented the testimony of Lindi James, Elmer Holt, Richard Wetterstrom, Charles White, and Greg Taylor.

After lunch, the Court announced that it would deny the Defendant's Motion to Suppress the Statements given by the Defendant to Detective Nazarchuck (pages 307-309). The Court then heard the Defendant's Motion to Suppress the Statements made by the Defendant to the troopers, as well as the Motion to Suppress the evidence seized from the Defendant and the Cadillac by the troopers. The Defendant, as well as the two troopers, proffered their testimony to the Court. Following their testimony, the court suppressed the statements made to the troopers, but allowed the knife and Florida tags into evidence, stating that since the Defendant had no valid possesory interest in the car, he had no standing to object to its search and seizure (pages 354-355).

The State called Reinaldo Dorta as its next witness. During cross-examination, counsel for the Defendant attempted to impeach the witness' statements on the stand (concerning the last date he had seen the Defendant) with an inconsistent staement he had made during his deposition taken on January 20,

Nazarchuck. The Court then recessed while the detective was still on the stand. After lunch, counsel for the Defendant again renewed his Motion to Sequester the Jury, stating that the news media had been carrying reports about events taking place in the courtroom outside the presence of the jury, and thus the Defendant was concerned about the possible prejudicial effects those reports would have on a juror who chanced to hear or read them. The Court denied the Motion (pages 542-543).

The jury was then seated and Detective Nazarchuck completed his testimony. The State then presented the testimony of Decendra Patel, Andrew Baker, James McNamara, Steve Dexter, Donald Riley, and Robert Daniel Booth. The Court then excused the jury for the day. After their excusal, the Defendant again moved for a mistrial since the Defendant was still shackled in full view of the jury, although two days had passed without incident. The Court once again denied the motion and recessed the trial until the next morning (pages 636-637).

Trial resumed on March 18, 1983. Prior to the State's presentation of its last witness, Michael White, counsel for the Defendant requested that the Court remind the prosecutor that a Motion in Liminie was in effect which refrained the witness from making any comments concerning the Defendant allegedly stabbing him. The Court reminded the prosecutor, who commented that he had already warned the witness. When Michael White testified, however, he mentioned three separate times in the presence of the jury that the Defendant had stabbed him with a knife. Counsel for the Defendant immediately moved for a mistrial due to the prejudicial effect of the statements on the jury. The Court denied the motion, however, struck the statements and instructed the jury to disregard them (pages 647-648).

On cross-examination, counsel for the Defendant attempted to question Michael White concerning the alleged stabbing because he was now caught in a bind since the jury had heard the statements. The Court prohibited counsel from proceeding any further with that line of questioning and warned counsel that failure

1983. The prosecutor objected to the cross-examination because he had not been present for the deposition, nor was there any evidence on the record to show that the interpreter used by the defense was certified as accurate and reliable. The Court sustained the prosecutor's objection and refused to allow counsel to go forward with his cross-examination in so far as it concerned any attempts at impeachment with the January 20, 1983, deposition (pages 372-285).

The State finished its presentation of the evidence for the afternoon through the calling of Dr. Shashi Gore, Margaret Moore, Donald Potter, Trooper Wilson, and Trooper Hull. Trooper Hull stated during his testimony that the Defendant resisted their efforts to arrest him. Counsel for the Defendant objected to the introduction of the evidence, asking the Court to strike the statement and to instruct the jury to disregard it. The Court overruled the objection and denied the motion to strike (page 451).

After Trooper Hull completed his testimony, the Court excused the jury for the day. The State was then allowed to introduce into evidence its various exhibits. Counsel for the Defendant did object to the introduction of the knife and Florida tags, but was overruled by the Court. During the introduction of this evidence, counsel for the Defendant again moved for a mistrial, stating that the Defendant had remained shackled throughout the day in the presence of the jury, although his courtroom demeanor had been calm since the trial started. The Court denied the motion (page 469).

Counsel for the Defendant then requested the Court to grant his Motion in Liminie (pages 1829-1830) regarding the testimony of James McNamara about the results of tests he had performed on the knife found in the victim's car. The Court stated that it would hold the Motion under advisement. Trial was then recessed until the next morning (page 470).

Trial resumed the morning of March 17, 1983, with the State presenting the testimony of Gracie Moore, James Murray, Amanda Taylor, and Detective Daniel

to do so would open the door for the State to resume questioning concerning the alleged stabbing on re-direct (pages 651-652). Following Michael White's testimony, the State rested.

At that time, counsel for the Defendant again moved for a mistrial, stating that the prosecutor's line of questions had in fact elicited the responses from Michael White about the alleged stabbing. This motion was denied. Counsel for the Defendant then moved for a mistrial based on the fact that the Court had restricted his right to cross-examine the witness fully. This motion was also denied (pages 654-656).

Counsel for the Defendant then moved for a Judgment of Acquittal on various grounds, all which were denied (pages 657-660). The Court then prepared to proceed with the Defendant's testimony. Before counsel could proceed, however, a note was delivered from the jury room. In his note, Juror Cody stated that Michael White's statements concerning the alleged stabbing had raised doubts about his ability to proceed as an impartial juror without hearing rebuttal testimony from the Defendant. After reading the note, the Court announced that it would excuse Juror Cody and replace him with one of the alternates.

Counsel for the Defendant again moved for a mistrial stating that the note itself was indicative of the feelings of the panel and that the alleged stabbing of Michael White had now become a volatile issue that could not be cured by instruction or replacement. The Court denied the motion (pages 661-664). Counsel then requested the Court to inquire of Juror Cody as to how the other jurors felt on the subject. The Court denied the request (pages 665-668).

Following the replacement of Juror Cody, the trial resumed with the Defendant's testimony. Following his testimony, the defense rested. The Court then excused the jury and proceeded with the charge conference. During the charge conference, counsel for the Defendant requested the Court to instruct the jury on five special instructions, all which the Court denied (pages 726-731). The

Court then recessed for lunch. After lunch, the Defendant again renewed his request for the special jury instructions, which was denied (page 736-747). Counsel for the Defendant then moved for a judgment of acquittal at the close of the case, which was also denied (pages 745-746).

Closing arguments were given by both sides. The Court then charged the jury and excused them to deliberate. After an hour's deliberation, the jury returned with verdicts of guilty as to both the homicide and the auto theft. The Court excused the jury and then adjudicated the Defendant on both charges (page 1850-1852). The Court set the penalty phase of the trial for April 1, 1983, and recessed.

On March 28, 1983, Counsel for the Defendant filed a Motion for a post-trial Judgment of Acquittal (page 1863), as well as a Motion for New Trial (pages 1864-1867).

On April 1, 1983, the penalty phase of the trial was held. The State presented the testimony of Detective Daniel Nazarchuck in support of its attempt to prove the aggravating circumstances of murder for pecuniary gain, and murder committed in an especially atrocious, heinous or cruel manner. Counsel for the Defendant presented Margaret Maddon, Rubin Garcia, and the Defendant himself in an attempt to prove the mitigating circumstances of a lack of a prior signifigant criminal history, that the Defendant's background caused him to be mentally or emotionally disturbed, and that the Defendant was of a youthful age. Following closing arguments by both sides, the jury was excused to deliberate. The panel returned with an advisory sentence of death (pages 1869-1875).

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