IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

PEDRO	MEDINA,)
	Appellant,	Ś
		ý
VS.		Ś
ርጥለጥፑ	OF FLORIDA)
SIALE	OF FLORIDA,	Ś
	Appellee.)

SID J. WHILE MAR 2 1984 CLERK, SUPREME COURT CASE NO. 63,68 Chief Deputy Clerk

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

EVELYN D. GOLDEN ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 125 N. Ridgewood Avenue Fourth Floor Daytona Beach, F1 32014 (904) 252-1067

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

-18-

It is interesting to note that counsel for appellant has cited no case law in support of his position that his motion for discharge should have been granted.

The delay in bringing defendant/appellant to trial was attributable to exceptional circumstance wherein the public defender, a few weeks before trial, had to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. This court, under similar facts, has found that it is a conflict to represent a defendant when an adverse witness is also a client. See <u>Jennings v. State</u>, 413 So.2d 24 (Fla. 1982). Failure to allow the public defender to withdraw would have resulted in the denial of a fair trial to the defendant. <u>Jennings</u>, supra.

Under Rule 3.191(f), Fla. R. Crim. P., exceptional circumstances are those which as a matter of substantial justice to the accused or the State or both require an order by the court; Such circumstances include (4) a showing by the accused or the State of necessity for delay grounded on developments which could not have been anticipated and which will materially affect the trial. It could not be anticipated that the public defender would have a conflict of interest that would not be timely discovered.

Additionally, under Rule 3.191(d)(2)(iv) Fla. R. Crim.P. the time may be extended by written or recorded order of the court for a period of reasonable and necessary delay resulting from proceedings including but not limited to an examination and hearing to determine the mental competency

-19-

or physical ability of the defendant to stand trial, for hearings on pre-trial motions, . . . et al.

The appellee contends that because the continuance occasioned by the withdrawal of the public defender and request from newly appointed counsel for sixty (60) to ninety (90) days to prepare for trial, was a continuance charged to the defense, that the one hundred eighty (180) day speedy trial rule was not applicable. See Butterworth v. Fluellen, 389 So.2d 968 (Fla. 1980). Thereafter defendant was entitled to constitutional speedy trial rights. The defendant/appellant was not prejudiced by the delay in that he still was conducting discovery and a motion to determine his competency was still pending. Therefore, the trial court correctly denied defendant's motion for discharge. See State v. Nieman, 433 So.2d 572 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). Compare, Ehn v. Smith, 426 So.2d 570 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983) [withdrawal of defense counsel where no specific trial date was set; substitute counsel appointed on same date of withdrawal; no period of extension was stated; and none of the other grounds for extension as enumerated in 3.191(d)(2) of the rule were present].

-20-

POINT TEN

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTIONS IN LIMINE REQUESTING THE COURT TO PROHIBIT THE STATE FROM QUESTIONING PROSPECTIVE JURORS ABOUT THEIR ATTITUDES TOWARD CAPITAL PUNISHMENT.

ARGUMENT

The trial court correctly denied appellant's motions in limine. Section 913.13, Fla. Stat. (1983) provides that:

> A person who has beliefs which preclude him from finding a <u>defendant guilty</u> of an offense punishable by death shall not be qualified as a juror in a capital case.

There is no way to qualify a juror in a capital case without ascertaining whether a juror could discharge their obligation should the evidence warrant it.

In <u>Witherspoon v. Illinois</u>, the court specifically recognized that the State may well have the power to exclude jurors on grounds more narrowly drawn:

> [N]othing we say today bears upon the power of a State to execute a defendant sentenced to death by a jury from which the only veniremen who were in fact excluded for cause were those who made [it] unmistakably clear (1) that they would <u>automatically</u> vote against the imposition of capital punishment without regard to any evidence that might be developed at the trial of the case before

them, or (2) that their attitude toward the death penalty would prevent them from making an impartial decision as to the defendant's guilt.

Id. at 522-523, N.21, 88 S.Ct. at 1777 (emphasis in original).

This statement seems clearly designed to accommodate the State's legitimate interest in obtaining jurors who could follow their instructions and obey their oaths.

The questions asked of prospective jurors clearly comported with the United States Supreme Court decisions in <u>Witherspoon</u>, <u>Lockett v. Ohio</u>, 438 U.S. 586, 595-596, 98 S.Ct. 2954, 2960, 57 L.Ed. 2d 973 (1978); and <u>Adams v. Texas</u>, 448 U.S. 38, 45, 100 S.Ct. 2521, 2526, 65 L.Ed. 2d 581 (1980). (See R 26-28). Therefore, the trial court did not err in denying defendant's motions in limine.

POINT ELEVEN

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING IN PART DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR DISCLOSURE OF RECORDS OF PRIOR CONVICTIONS OF SEVERAL NON LAW ENFORCEMENT STATE'S WITNESS.

ARGUMENT

The record indicates that the trial court granted in part defendant's motion (R 919). The court ordered the state to disclose any information, by letter, from his files and records, which contain the prior convictions of the witnesses (R 919). The court ruled that absent a further showing by the defense that the information is unavailable, the court was not inclined to order the prosecutor to do anything further (R 919).

The appellant had obtained the information regarding the prior records of Michael White, Reinaldo Dorta, and Gracie Moore at the time of the hearing (R 915). He had deposed all but Margaret Moore who resided out of state (R 915).

In the instant case, the order of the trial court granting appellant's motion in part, fully complies with this Court's decision in <u>State v. Coney</u>, 294 So.2d 82 (Fla. 1973) reh. granted 294 So.2d 87 (Fla. 1974), requiring the state to disclose criminal records in the physical possession of the state prosecutorial or law enforcement office.

The court reaffirmed its decision in <u>State v</u>. <u>Crawford</u>, 257 So.2d 838 (Fla. 1972) requiring the prosecuting attorney to secure the information only upon a showing

-23-

by defense counsel that he has first exerted his own efforts and resources; and has pursued and concluded other available means and remedies available to him to obtain such information. Id. The prosecuting attorney is not required to actively assist defendant's attorney in the investigation of the case. <u>Crawford</u>, <u>supra</u>, 294 So.2d. <u>Coney</u>, at 87.

POINT TWELVE

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S REQUEST FOR AN ADDITIONAL PSYCHIATRIC EXAMINATION OF DEFENDANT.

ARGUMENT

Rule 3.210(b), Fla. R. Crim. P. provides that:

(b) If before or during the trial the court of its own motion, or upon motion of counsel for the defendant or for the State, has reasonable ground to believe that the defendant is not mentally competent to stand trial, the court shall immediately enter its order setting a time for a hearing to determine the defendant's mental condition, which shall be held no later than 20 days after the date of the filing of the motion, and shall order the defendant to be examined by no more than three nor fewer than two experts prior to the date of said hearing. Attorneys for the State and the defendant may be present at the examination.

Pursuant to the Rule, the trial court ordered an examination of defendant/appellant upon defense counsel's motion. The two (2) experts concluded after an examination of the defendant that he was competent to stand trial. Upon defense counsel's motion for an additional expert, the trial court denied the motion inasmuch as both experts reached the same conclusion about defendant's mental condition (R 914). Had there been a split of opinions, the trial court would have ordered an additional examination by a third expert (R 914). The appellee maintains that the

-25-

ruling of the trial court was correct. Compare, <u>Chapman v</u>. <u>State</u>, 391 So.2d 744 (Fla. 5th DCA 1980) [court appointed four experts due to split opinions regarding defendant's competency; one more than required under the rules].

POINT THIRTEEN

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO VACATE DEATH PENALTY.

ARGUMENT

Defendant/appellant maintains that Section 921.141, Florida Statutes (1981) is unconstitutional in that this Court has not adopted the procedure outlined in the statute as a rule of this Court. Appellee would point out that appellant has apparently overlooked, <u>The Florida Bar re:</u> <u>Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure</u>, 343 So.2d 1247, 1263 (Fla. 1977) wherein this Court adopted Rule 3.780, Fla. R. Crim. P. governing Sentencing Hearings in Capital Cases; which was designed to create a uniform procedure to be followed, which was consistent with Section 921.141, Fla. Stat.

The constitutionality of Section 921.141, <u>Fla</u>. <u>Stat</u>. has been repeatedly upheld and does not violate the requirements of Article V, Section 2(a) Florida Constitution, by attempting to govern practice and procedure. See <u>Dobbert</u> <u>v. State</u>, 375 So.2d 1069 (Fla. 1979), <u>cert</u>. <u>denied</u>, 447 U.S. 912, 100 S.Ct. 3000, 64 L.Ed. 2d 862 (1980); <u>Smith v. State</u>, 407 So.2d 894 (Fla. 1981), and <u>Vaught v. State</u>, 410 So.2d 147 (Fla. 1982).

Accordingly, the order denying defendant's motion was proper.

-27-

POINT FOURTEEN

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO SUPPRESS THE ARREST OF THE DE-FENDANT AND SUBSEQUENT SEIZURE OF PHYSICAL EVIDENCE FROM THE CADILLAC FOLLOWING HIS ARREST BY THE FLORIDA HIGHWAY PATROL.

ARGUMENT

The Florida Highway Patrolman, Trooper Wilson, had probable cause to arrest appellant. Trooper Wilson testified at the suppression hearing that he observed appellant, apparently asleep, in the driver's seat of a green over white Cadillac, parked in a rest area (R 322-323). The car was running and there appeared to be a gas leak. The trooper radioed his station and advised that he would be checking the driver to ascertain his physical condition (R 322-323). However, before he reached the front of his car, the station radioed that the car he had called in was possibly used in a homicide (R 323). Trooper Wilson waited for back-up and proceeded to arrest the appellant (R 324). Following the arrest, the trooper searched the car, incident to the arrest; and found a buck knife with a wood color handle underneath a hub cap in the back right floorboard of the vehicle, (R 337) and two tags in the trunk and keys with the initial "D" (R 441-443).

The trial court found that the defendant, Medina, did not have standing to complain of the search of the car; finding that he did not have permission of the owner and in fact that he had stolen the car (R 354). Appellant concedes

-28-

that he had no standing to object to the search of the car (See initial brief of appellant p.54 line 6), but maintains nevertheless that the search was the product of an illegal arrest not based on probable cause, and therefore, should have been suppressed.

Appellant's argument is without merit. See, <u>Rawlings v. Kentucky</u>, 448 U.S. 98, 100 S.Ct. 2556, 65 L. Ed. 2d 633 (1980).

Appellant's reliance upon <u>State v. Rogers</u>, 427 So.2d 286 (Fla. 1st DCA 1983) is misplaced. Rogers was arrested for murder. The appellant was arrested for auto theft. In light of appellant's lies about ownershop of the car, the officers, in light of their knowledge, were justified in their belief that appellant was not the owner or an authorized user of the car.

Probable cause for an arrest is formulated when reasonably trustworthy facts and circumstances are within the knowledge of the arresting officer to warrant a man of reasonable caution in the belief that an offense has been or is being committed. <u>Draper v. United States</u>, 358 U.S. 307, 313, 79 S.Ct. 329, 3 L.Ed.2d 327 (1964). And where there is at least minimal communication between different officers, we [this court] look to the "collective knowledge" of the officers in determining probable cause. <u>United States v. Vasquez</u>, 534 F.2d 1142, 1145, (5th Cir. 1976) <u>cert</u>. <u>denied</u>, 429 U.S. 979, 97 S.Ct. 489, 50 L.Ed. 2d 587 (1976). A showing of probable cause requires much

-29-

1.14

less evidence than a finding of guilt. United States v. Beck, 431 F.2d 536, 538 (5th Cir. 1970). Probable cause must be judged not with the logic of cold steel, but with a common sense view to the realities of everyday life. Brinegar v. United States, 338 U.S. 160, 175, 69 S.Ct. 1302, 1310, 93 L.Ed. 1879, 1890 (1949).

The search of the car and subsequent seizure of the knife, tags, keys, etc. was justified as incident to a valid arrest. <u>Chimel v. California</u>, 395 U.S. 752, 89 S. Ct. 2034, 23 L.Ed. 2d 685 (1969); <u>United States v. Agostino</u>, 608 F.2d 1035 (5th Cir. 1979); and <u>New York v. Belton</u>, 453 U.S. 454, 101 S.Ct. 2860, 69 L.Ed. 2d 768 (1981).

POINT FIFTEEN

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENY-ING DEFENDANT'S MOTION IN LIMINE RE-GARDING TROOPERS HULL AND WILSON'S TESTIMONY OF THE FACTS SURROUNDING DEFENDANT'S ARREST IN COLUMBIA COUNTY.

ARGUMENT

The trial court found that the troopers' testimony was admissible because (a) defense counsel had deposed the officers; (b) that defendant was on trial for auto theft along with the murder case and was part and parcel; (c) that any resistance to arrest on that charge would be an appropriate part of that case (R 906).

The fact and place of perpetration are ingredients of a crime and are germane to proof required for conviction. <u>Tompkins v. State</u>, 386 So.2d 597,599 (Fla. 5th DCA 1980). Appellant's arrest for auto theft and his resistance to arrest on that charge, are part and parcel of the trial in that part of the case. The evidence was not similar fact evidence because appellant was on trial for auto theft; and testimony regarding his resistance to arrest was unavoidable in that it was impossible to give a complete or intelligent account of the crime charged (auto theft) without referring to the other crime (resisting arrest and battery on a law enforcement officer). Tompkins, supra.

The court's inquiry regarding the alleged violation of the notice requirements of section 90.404, Florida Statutes, was sufficient. There was no violation of this court's decision regarding discovery in Richardson v. State, 246 So.2d

-31-

771 (Fla. 1971) in that there was no discovery violation. Defense counsel had deposed the troopers and was fully aware of the facts regarding defendant's resistance to arrest (R 906). Accordingly, the trial court correctly denied defendant's motion.

POINT SIXTEEN

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO SUPPRESS ADMISSIONS AND STATEMENTS MADE BY THE DE-FENDANT TO DETECTIVES PAYNE AND NAZARCHUCK OF THE ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE.

ARGUMENT

The defendant never asked for an interpreter or explained that he didn't understand Detective Nazarchuck's questions (R 205). The defendant understood his rights and spoke English to Detective Nazarchuck (R 200).

During the taped conversation, after his rights were explained to him Detective Nazarchuck asked him if he wanted to talk at this time (R 201). The defendant answered, "No." (R 201). Detective Nazarchuck sought to clarify the answer because he didn't know if the defendant meant he didn't want to talk at that time, or no, he didn't have any problems talking to us (R 206). After clarifying the defendant answered, "Well, I want to tell you something." (R 201). The defendant never indicated that he wanted to stop to have an attorney, or discontinue making a statement (R 202).

Defendant/appellant argues that his arrest in Columbia County was illegal and therefore his statements should have been suppressed. Appellant does not challenge the voluntariness of the statement, the taped statements; or the verbal statement preceding the taped statement (R 309).

-33-

He only contends that his statements were the product of an illegal arrest and should have been suppressed.

Initially, appellee would point out that appellant's statement was primarily exculpatory. His arrest was based on probable cause and therefore was not illegal. United States v. Vasquez, 534 F.2d 1142, 1145 (5th Cir. 1976).

The issue of the voluntariness of the statement was never raised by the court below. Therefore, it is waived. In the absence of fundamental error, this court cannot consider an issue raised for the first time on appeal. Steinhorst v. State, 412 So.2d 332 (Fla. 1982).

The ruling of the trial court on a motion to suppress, when it comes to the reviewing court, is clothed with the presumption of correctness, and the reviewing court will interpret the evidence and reasonable inferences and deductions derived therefrom in a manner most favorable to sustain the trial court's ruling. <u>McNamara v. State</u>, 357 So.2d 410, 412 (Fla. 1978). Therefore, this Court should affirm the ruling of the trial court.

-34-

POINT SEVENTEEN

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR SEVERANCE.

ARGUMENT

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